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Photo 1.  Streetscape view, looking east from 12 Norman Ave. (2 and 1 Lexington Ave. on right)
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	Town/City:  	Gloucester

	Place (neighborhood or village): 
		Magnolia

	Name of Area: Norman Avenue Area 	

	Present Use:    residential, institutional, commercial

	Construction Dates or Period:	 mid-1880s to ca. 1970

	Overall Condition:	very good

	Major Intrusions and Alterations:
late 20th century suburban infill housing	

	Acreage:   approx. 8 acres
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|_|  Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  
	If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.


Use as much space as necessary to complete the following entries, allowing text to flow onto additional continuation sheets.

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION    
Describe architectural, structural and landscape features and evaluate in terms of other areas within the community. 

A linear district, the Norman Avenue Area occupies four blocks of Norman Avenue between Linden Avenue on the east and Magnolia Avenue and Fuller Street on the west.  Norman Avenue is a well-traveled connector road into the present village center of Magnolia from Route 127.  Visually and architecturally cohesive, the survey area is characterized by a variety of well-preserved, wood-frame institutional, commercial, and mainly residential buildings from the late 19th and early 20th centuries.  A limited amount of suburban infill housing has occurred.  The survey area contains 23 properties on both sides of Norman Avenue; several have addresses on intersecting cross-streets.  Twelve of these were minimally inventoried in 1985.

This section of Norman Avenue traverses a slight rise in terrain, with its high point at Lexington Ave., at the mid-point of the survey area.  Streetscape features include a paved sidewalk along the south side of the street and on the north side between Dalton Avenue and Lake Road.  More than half the properties have some sort of landscape definition at the sidewalk edge, usually a wood fence or a hedge; three parcels have stone walls.  Two large, square stone pillars flank the intersection of Dalton and Norman Avenues.   Lots are maintained chiefly in lawn, with informal plantings of shrubbery and trees and occasional street trees.  Front and side setbacks are generally modest.

All of the buildings are wood frame with pitched roofs-- including gable, gambrel, and hip shapes.  Free interpretations of the Colonial Revival and Queen Anne styles predominate. The area’s residential buildings were originally constructed as single-family housing; several have been converted to multi-family use.  The area is unified by the wide straight street, common setbacks and spacing, similar building scale and picturesque massing, and architectural details derived from historical sources.  There is a range of residential building sizes, but most are comparatively large.  Building lots are typically modest in size, although several larger lots with correspondingly larger houses are found on the north side of Norman Avenue, at its intersection with Dalton Avenue.  Institutional and commercial buildings in the Norman Avenue Area are typically large in scale and are located on the south side of the roadway; two of them mark the corners of Lexington Avenue, Magnolia’s major commercial street.  

The Norman Avenue Area houses are typically 2 ½ stories high and topped by a hip or gable roof with multiple dormers or cross-gables.  There are a small number of gambrel roofs as well.  Late 20th century infill is usually 1 ½ stories high, with simple building shapes and rooflines.  Foundations are chiefly granite rubble or ashlar on the older buildings and poured concrete on the newer ones; exterior walls are typically clad with wood clapboard or shingles with plain wood trim.  Roofs are invariably covered with asphalt shingles.  Characteristic design themes include decorative front entry porticos or porches, side porches, bay windows and towers, small-paned double-hung window sash, and decorative eaves (often displaying brackets or exposed rafter ends at roof eaves and at projecting wall surfaces). 

The great majority of buildings in the survey area were constructed as single-family homes.  Notable non-residential properties include a private library/community building and a commercial building on the corners of Lexington Avenue, a church, and a small storefront building that was affiliated with a larger adjacent commercial building (not extant).  

Most buildings in the Norman Avenue Area retain integrity of form, setting, and character.  Building conditions are typically very good.  The few intrusions are mostly small new infill structures.  The most notable alterations in the survey area are rear additions and occasional artificial siding and enclosed porches.  Descriptions of selected representative and extraordinary buildings follow.

Residential Buildings
The popular Queen Anne and Colonial Revival styles in the survey area display complex, often asymmetrical massing and a free, decorative use of classical elements, sometimes with additional Shingle Style influences.  A number of more academic examples of the Colonial Revival style are also present.  One of the largest and most ambitious designs in the survey area is the Henry S. Shaw Cottage, 12 Norman Avenue (ca. 1884) (GLO.1146; Photo 2).  This voluminous, 2 ½ story building has a side gable roof, wood shingle siding, a one-story angled bay window on one end of the facade and a two-story cylindrical tower with a bell-shaped roof on the other, and a multitude of window sash styles.  Set roughly in the middle of the asymmetrical facade, a three-bay entrance porch features Tuscan columns and a pedimented gable roof.  Elaborately carved woodwork decorates the tympanum of the entrance portico and the tower’s cornice. 

Similar in size, scale, and style is the Morse-Jones Cottage, 10 Dalton Avenue (ca. 1888) (GLO.1147; Photo 12), which is set at the end of a long private drive (now a public way) well back from Norman Avenue.  The eclectic Queen Anne style building rises 2 ½ stories to a double hip roof with multiple dormers and a massive paneled brick chimney.  The wood-shingled façade is notable for its two-story pavilion with decorative half-timbering in the peak and a shed-roofed entry porch, a two-story bow window at one corner, and a recessed porch at the other end.

Occupying the corner of Norman Avenue and Ocean Avenue, the Malonson House, 24 Norman Avenue (ca. 1899) (GLO.1151; Photo 3) is a simpler and more compact example of the “free classic” Queen Anne style.  It is clad in wood shingles and rises 2 ½ stories to a front gable roof with large cross-gables on the side elevations.  The design is distinguished by a pedimented façade with a bracketed horizontal cornice, a two-story angled bay window on the Ocean Ave. elevation, and a wraparound porch with a gabled and pedimented entrance pavilion set on the diagonal facing the intersection of Norman and Ocean Avenues.   

The Richardson Cottage, 18 Norman Avenue (ca. 1909-1917) (GLO.1148; Photo 4) is an imposing residence set well back from the street, on axis with Lexington Avenue.  Its formal Colonial Revival style encompasses a substantial 2 ½ story main block capped by a hip roof and two large hip-roofed rear ells.  The main block is sheathed with clapboards and trimmed with corner pilasters, a dentilled entablature, and modillioned eaves.  Its three-bay façade has paired windows, with dentilled cornices on the first floor, and an elaborate center entrance portico featuring Tuscan columns, triglyphs, modillion brackets, and a pedimented gable roof.  A full length porch extends along the Dalton Avenue elevation, echoing the detailing of the front entry.  To the north of and behind the main block, a long, two-story motel addition has a side gabled roof, two stories of covered walkways across the façade, and modern picture window units.   

The large and eclectic, Colonial Revival-style White Villa, 12 Ocean Avenue (ca. 1899) (GLO.1150; Photo 5) occupies a highly visible corner at the intersection of Ocean and Norman Avenues.  The L-shaped building rises 2 ½ stories to a hip roof; its five bay, center-entrance facade is oriented towards Ocean Avenue.  Distinguishing features include clapboard siding; a three-bay, two-story portico on the front elevation, which shelters a main entrance with sidelights and Adamesque transom; a belt course between the first and second stories; and deep, decoratively bracketed eaves on the main roof and its multiple dormers.   

The Julia M. Scanlan House, 19A Norman Avenue (ca. 1930-1937) (GLO.1153; Photo 6) is representative of the area’s middle-class homes in the Colonial Revival period.  More modestly scaled but still attentively detailed, this 2 ½ story Colonial Revival-style house has a side-gable roof, wood shingle siding, and an enclosed sun porch on the east side.  The three-bay façade features paired windows, three gabled dormers, and a center entrance.  The middle bay contains a large hip-roofed portico with a cross gable and fanlighted door at the first floor, an angled bay window on the second story, and a large walk-out dormer with a balustraded roof deck at the half-story.

At the corner of Norman and Magnolia Avenues, the Ralph S. Gardener House, 1 Magnolia Ave (ca. 1903-1909) (Photo 7) presents a smaller and more informal example of the early 20th century Colonial Revival style.  Its L-shaped main block, clad with wood shingles, rises 1 ½ stories to gambrel roofs with flared eaves and shed-roofed dormers.  A recessed porch with plain square posts lines the west elevation and wraps around the façade under a low hip roof, which shelters an offset door.   Compact one- and two-story additions extend from the back of both side elevations.

Non-Residential Buildings
The Union Congregational Church, 3 Norman Ave (1893) (GLO.1144; Charles A. Cummings, architect; Photo 8) is a unique example of ecclesiastical architecture in Magnolia still in its original use.  Set well back from Norman Avenue, near its intersection with Magnolia Avenue and Fuller Street, this large, rambling building displays a handsome Shingle Style design.  The picturesque massing includes a front-gabled main block with gabled side wings and a trail of large, gabled rear ells.  Walls are shingled, with overhanging gables on the second and half-stories supported on carved brackets.  The façade is distinguished by two small cross-gabled pavilions at either end; five 20/20 double-hung windows centered in the front gable on the first floor and three triple-hung, round arch sash on the second floor; and a small square tower with an open belfry and hip roof on the northwest corner.  A large rose window set in a two-story, cross-gabled pavilion on the west elevation was reportedly moved here from the Summer Chapel on nearby Flume Street in the early 20th century.

Although some original features have been substantially altered, the Magnolia Library Association Building, 1 Lexington Avenue (1887-1890) (GLO.1164; Charles A. Cummings, architect; Photo 9) occupies a prominent location at the west corner of Lexington and Norman Avenue and retains significant integrity in its massing, materials, and fenestration.  Square in footprint, the asymmetrically articulated building has a dynamic roofline, shingled walls (decoratively patterned in the gable peaks), overhanging second stories and gable peaks with bracketed soffits, and a variety of large, single and grouped windows.  The Norman and Lexington Avenue façades both have large pedimented cross-gables, with banded windows on the second story of the north façade.  A group of three tall triple-hung windows is centered in the half-story of the broad, asymmetrical gable of the 1 ½ story west elevation.  During a 1968 remodeling, the siding of the upper floors was changed from stucco and half-timbering to wood shingles, a recessed entrance and recessed second story porch on Lexington Avenue were filled in, an entrance porch on the west end of the Norman Avenue façade was enclosed, and a domed ventilation cupola was removed from the roof.

Anchoring the prominent east corner of Lexington and Norman Avenues, the Original Magnolia Tea House and North Shore Grill, 2 Lexington Ave (ca. 1900) (GLO.1165; Photo 10) is one of the few remaining historic commercial buildings in Magnolia.  The lively Queen Anne style building rises 2 ½ stories to a hip roof with flared eaves and multiple cross gables and hip-roof dormers.  The square massing is animated by overhanging, bracketed cross gables at the southwest and northeast corners and a polygonal tower with a third story porch and pyramidal roof at the northwest corner.  One-story storefronts under low hip roofs line the west and north sides of the building; one- and two-story additions have been made to the south and east sides.

At the other end of the commercial building spectrum in Magnolia, the one-room, one-story Magnolia Telegraph Office, 35 Fuller Street (ca. 1909-191719) (GLO.1136; Photo 11) is all that remains of the Lycett Store and Post Office property (GLO.1136, ca 1900).  The extant structure has a pedimented front gable roof and wood shingle siding.  Its restrained storefront façade has a center entrance that is framed by two square storefront windows and slender corner pilasters that support the horizontal cornice.  Each side elevation has one opening (either a door or a window), and the rear elevation has a small gabled appendage at its south end. 


HISTORICAL NARRATIVE     
Explain historical development of the area.  Discuss how this relates to the historical development of the community. 

Located four miles southwest of central Gloucester, Magnolia – known originally as easterly Kettle Cove – attracted some of the earliest summer development on Cape Ann.  A quiet village of farms and fish shacks until the 1860s, Magnolia emerged in the last quarter of the 19th century as an exclusive ocean summer resort, rivalling Newport, Rhode Island and Bar Harbor, Maine.  The Day family of Boston were the first summer boarders in 1861.  Summer development flourished following the opening of the Gloucester & Rockport Branch Line (1861) of the Eastern Railroad, the line later owned by the Boston & Maine Railroad.  The passenger station (no longer extant) was located at the end of the present Magnolia Avenue in Manchester.  In 1867, Daniel W. Fuller of Swampscott, a merchant, acquired most of the land at Magnolia Point in Gloucester from the Knowlton family.  Fuller laid out Hesperus Avenue and Fuller Street, and probably renamed Lobster Lane as the present Shore Road.  He encouraged campers, sold some lots, built cottages himself for sale or rent, and in 1873 opened a café at the corner of Hesperus Avenue and Fuller Street.  Summer hotels and boardinghouses followed from 1874 onward, among them the Crescent Beach Hotel; Willow Cottage (converted from Knowlton homestead); Hesperus House (1877); The Oceanside (ca. 1879/ca. 1912); and The Magnolia (1891-1908).  All have since burned or were demolished.  In 1876, the name Kettle Cove was changed to Magnolia in recognition of the wildflower Magnolia glauca, an early July bloomer that still grows in the area and is distinct from hybrid Magnolia trees.  A number of summer estates and large hotels were built at Magnolia between 1890 and 1930.  In a shift of commercial development away from Magnolia Avenue and Fuller Street, an exclusive shopping district was established on Lexington Avenue from ca. 1910 to 1920, along with restaurants and night clubs that attracted patrons from as far away at Boston.  Hotels sponsored dances, horse shows, and athletic contest for the entertainment of their quests.  Institutional buildings serving the summer population included a library (1887), summer chapel (1890), two churches (1893 and 1911), and separate women’s and men’s clubs (ca. 1910) [Jenkins and Frontiero, 2-8 to 2-9; Wright, 9; Karr, 264-265; 1919 atlas; Garland, 127-129].

Norman Avenue appears to have been named for the “island rock” or reef known as Norman’s Woe, located offshore a short distance east of the village at Magnolia.  Local tradition holds that Richard Norman, who sailed on a voyage about 1680 and never returned, may have been shipwrecked and lost there [Babson, 12; Hill, 62-63]. The principal artery defining the northern end of the village – connecting the Hesperus Avenue approach from central Gloucester with the Magnolia Avenue route to the train station – Norman Avenue was laid out by Fuller and Bernard Stanwood, and graded by the City of Gloucester in 1903.  Displaying a mix of residential, commercial, and institutional buildings of significance to Magnolia, Norman Avenue today is the village’s “Main Street,” offering a more cohesive historic streetscape than adjacent mixed use corridors on Magnolia Avenue and Lexington Avenue that were compromised by fires and demolition in the second half of the 20th century.

Three summer “cottages” or estates on parcels bordering the present Dalton Avenue, constituting some of the earliest extant residential development in the Norman Avenue corridor, were constructed between the mid-1880s and 1917.  Oldest of these is the Henry S. Shaw Cottage, 12 Norman Avenue (aka 4 Dalton Avenue, ca. 1884, GLO.1146).  Henry Southworth Shaw (1833-1923), a winter resident of Boston and Milton, was a prominent manufacturer and estates trustee.  A graduate of the Boston public schools, he was treasurer of the Pemberton Company and the Stevens Linen Works at the time this house was built, and went on to serve as president of the Saco-Pattee Machine Shops (1898-1914), Saco-Lowell Shops (1912-1923), Textile Securities Company (1912-1923), Eastern Machine Company (1901-1923), Methuen Company (1894-1923), Pemberton Company (1906-1923), Silver Lake Company (1898-1908), and the Rhode Island Malleable Iron Works (1892-1907).  Shaw was director of other companies, as well as a trustee of the Franklin Savings Bank (1892-1923) and the Mount Auburn Cemetery in Cambridge (1893-1899). To the north of Shaw Cottage, the Morse-Jones Cottage, 10 Dalton Avenue (ca. 1888, GLO.1147), was built for Asa Porter Morse (1818-1906) of Cambridge.  Heavily involved in Massachusetts politics, Morse served in the General Court as both a state representative and a state senator.  Morse was president of Cambridgeport National Bank for sixteen years, later serving as one of its directors.  His daughter and son-in-law, Charles Willis Jones, subsequently resided here in the summertime.  Jones called the residence Highfields Cottage.  President of the New England National Bank, Jones and his family resided on Beacon Street in Boston during the winter months.  The third cottage – the ca. 1882 home of Edward C. Richardson on the east corner of Dalton Avenue at Norman Avenue – was replaced with Richardson Cottage, 18 Norman Avenue (ca. 1909-1917, GLO.1148), later owned by Otis Weld Richardson.  O. W. Richardson was an attorney and agent for a number of steamship lines, with an office at 20 Atlantic Avenue in Boston.  He was a prominent summer resident of Magnolia, had a leading role the establishment of the Magnolia Library Association in 1886, and initially stayed at the Oceanside Hotel, representing a pattern of development in which summer hotel visitors eventually purchased property and transitioned to more permanent residences in the village.  

Boston architect Charles A. Cummings, a summer resident of Magnolia, designed three institutional buildings in the larger village, the latter two within the boundaries of the Norman Avenue Area.  The Magnolia Library Association formed in 1886 to provide a library for summer residents, opening Magnolia Library, 1 Lexington Avenue (1887-1890, GLO.1164), in 1890.  The library functioned as a community center, and originally included a gymnasium as well as retail and residential spaces.  Charles Cummings, FAIA (1833-1906) was a charter member of the Boston Society of Architects (founded in 1867) and a native Bostonian who studied at the Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in Troy, New York and traveled extensively in Europe and Asia.  In partnership with Willard T. Sears under the firm name of Cummings and Sears, the architect was active in the reconstruction of Boston’s financial district following the great fire of 1872 and expansion of the residential district in Boston’s Back Bay, where he also designed his own residence at 109 Newbury Street (1871, BOS.3736, LHD, NRDIS).  Cummings was especially noted for his Florentine and Venetian Gothic designs for masonry institutional and commercial buildings, chief of which was the New Old South Church, 635-645 Boylston Street, Boston (1874, BOS.2653, LHD, NR, NHL).  In retirement he authored History of Architecture in Italy (1904) and contributed to other scholarship in the field of architectural history.  The original Queen Anne exterior of the Magnolia Library, with its wood-shingled first story and stucco and half-timbering above, was substantially altered to its present appearance in 1968.  Privately owned by the Magnolia Library Center, Inc., the building also houses the Magnolia Historical Society museum. [library web site; Withey, 152-153; Ramos; MACRIS].

Charles Cummings also designed Union Congregational Church, 3 Norman Avenue (1893, GLO.114).  Formed in 1887 with twenty members, the Church met at Union Chapel before the construction of this building, which opened in 1893 but was not completed until 1899.  In 1924, this Church received the round stained glass window and bell salvaged from the Cummings-designed Union (Summer) Chapel, 6 Flume Road (1884, GLO.1163), which preserves the architect’s original Queen Anne-style intent despite its closure in 1924 and conversion to residential use in 1945 [Ramos]. 

Another church abutting the Norman Avenue Area no longer survives.  The Rev. Jeremiah J. Healy, pastor of the Roman Catholic Church of St. Ann in central Gloucester, said Masses at the Magnolia Library from 1887 to 1910; most of the parishioners were the household staff of the village’s wealthy summer residents.  In 1911, the Rev. William J. Dwyer built the Church of St. Joseph, 17 Ocean Avenue (1911, GLO.1130) as the Magnolia mission of St. Ann’s.  The church, constructed by Ballou Brothers, stonemasons, was demolished in 2009 [Lord, 703; Ramos]. 

Historic commercial buildings illustrate the separation of commercial functions at Magnolia.  Everyday conveniences were oriented toward Fuller Street, at the western end of the area, while dining and entertainment catering to the summer set were situated near the exclusive shopping district that emerged on Lexington Avenue in the early 20th century.  Magnolia Telegraph Office, 35 Fuller Street (ca. 1909-1917), at the corner of Norman Avenue, is the only building on the parcel extant from the businesses of the Lycett family.  They maintained a post office, drug store, and variety store here at the Lycett Building, 35 Fuller Street (GLO.1136), which was demolished ca. 2014. The Original Magnolia Tea House and North Shore Grill, 2 Lexington Avenue (ca. 1900, GLO.1165) evolved from a tea room and summer apartment house to a restaurant in the early 20th century.  Mrs. Ella A. Rolfe was manager of the tea house in 1908.  She was succeeded in business here by Boston businesswoman Frances Stearns (d. 1911), who was largely responsible for establishing the fashionable Lexington Avenue shopping district with development of The Colonnade, 16-20 Lexington Avenue (1906, GLO.1168, demolished), housing specialty shops from Boston, New York, and Paris.  A resident of Boston’s Hotel Brunswick during the winter months, Miss Stearns started the North Shore Grill, considered the leading night spot north of Boston [Garland, 283].  One account states the Grill club was mainly for gentlemen, but the tea house was maintained in the back rose gardens for female customers [Ramos].  Del Monte’s, a night club that drew patrons from as a far away as Boston on a summer night, followed the North Shore Grill in the commercial space.  East of the Grill building, Frances Stearns also developed a summer hotel, known in the 1930s as The White Villa, 12 Ocean Avenue (ca. 1899, GLO.1150).  Thomas Elcack was the hotel-keeper at that time.

Infill residential development on Norman Avenue from the late 19th century into the 20th century was of smaller scale than the summer “cottages,” reflecting the subdivision of parcels as property values and the demand for development increased.  Circumstances surrounding the construction of the Malonson House, 24 Norman Avenue (ca. 1899, GLO.1151), are not clear and merit further research.  The 1908 social directory shows Mrs. H. C. Morse summering at “Molonson [sic] Cottage” on Norman Avenue, which may have operated as a guest house, and the 1919 atlas records the house under Malonson (spellings vary) ownership.  While Malonsons resided elsewhere in Gloucester during the winter months, the first indication of the family on Norman Avenue year-round occurred in the mid-1920s; Ella V. Malonson lived here from ca. 1925 to 1942.  Her father, Ambrose Malonson, had been a hotel-keeper in Gloucester.  Ralph S. Gardner and his wife, Bessie, resided at 1 Magnolia Avenue (ca.1903-1909) by 1917.  Gardner was the clerk at Davis Garage, which was located on Magnolia Avenue at Raymond Street outside this inventoried area.  Summer residents Sarah L. Guild and her brother, Courtenay Guild (1863-1946), a Boston publisher, reportedly built 19A Norman Avenue (ca. 1930-1937, GLO.1153) for their housekeeper, Julia M. Scanlan of Boston.  Scanlan, who was described in the 1920 census as nurse to the family at their residence in Boston, is first listed as a summer resident of Magnolia in the 1937 directory.  The Guilds summered at Magnolia from ca. 1925 to ca. 1946, residing at the former Arthur Lycett House, 26 Norman Avenue (ca. 1900, GLO.1152), across the street from the Scanlan house.  Five houses in the area post-date World War II, as Magnolia transitioned to a year-round community.
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Addresses reflect current Assessor’s records.

	Map-
Block
	MHC #
	Historic Name
	St. #
	Street Name
	Date
	Style

	170-45
	GLO.>>>
	
	8
	Dalton Ave

	1969
	raised ranch

	170-33
	GLO.1147
	Morse-Jones Cottage
Highfields Cottage

	10
	Dalton Ave

	ca. 1888
	Queen Anne

	168-68
	GLO.>>>
	Magnolia Telegraph Office
	35
	Fuller St

	ca. 1909-1917
	No style

	168-1
	GLO.1164
	Magnolia Library Association Building
	1
	Lexington Ave

	1887-1890
	Queen Anne/
Shingle style


	169-1
	GLO.1165
	Magnolia Tea Room – 
North Shore Grill

	2
	Lexington Ave

	ca. 1900
	Queen Anne

	170-15
	GLO.>>>
	Ralph S. Gardner House
	1
	Magnolia Ave

	ca. 1903-1909

	Colonial Revival

	168-13
	GLO.1144
	Union Congregational Church

	3
	Norman Ave

	1893
	Shingle style

	168-12
	---
	(vacant land)
	3A

	Norman Ave
	---
	---

	170-16
	GLO.>>>
	
	4

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1903-1909
	Georgian (Colonial) Revival


	170-17
	---
	(vacant land)
	4A

	Norman Ave
	---
	---

	168-11
	GLO.>>>
	
	5

	Norman Ave
	1953
	Postwar Traditional/
cape


	168-59
	---
	(vacant land)
	5R

	Norman Ave
	---
	---

	170-18
	GLO.>>>
	
	6

	Norman Ave
	1960
	Postwar Traditional/ ranch


	168-10
	GLO.1145
	Fuller House
	7

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1885
	Queen Anne/
Colonial Revival


	170-19
	GLO.>>>
	B. M. Thornberg House Sunnyside
	8

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1906
	Queen Anne/
Colonial Revival


	168-2
	GLO.>>>
	E. P. Rowe House
	9

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1917
	Colonial Revival

	170-31
	GLO.>>>
	
	10

	Norman Ave
	1964
	raised ranch

	170-32
	GLO.1146
	Henry S. Shaw Cottage
	12

	Norman Ave
(aka 4 Dalton Ave)
	ca. 1884
	Queen Anne/
Shingle style


	169-30
	GLO.>>>
	
	17

	Norman Ave
	1951
	Postwar Traditional/
cape


	170-43
	GLO.1148
	Richardson Cottage
	18

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1909-1917
	Colonial Revival

	169-29
	GLO.1153
	Julia M. Scanlan House
	19A

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1930
	Colonial Revival

	169-25
	GLO.>>>
	
	21
	Norman Ave
	1956
	Colonial Revival

	171-11
	GLO.1149
	Sargent House
	22

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1899
	Queen Anne

	171-14
	GLO.1151
	Malonson House
	24

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1899
	Colonial Revival

	171-15
	GLO.1152
	Arthur M. Lycett – 
Courtney Guild House

	26

	Norman Ave
	ca. 1900
	Colonial Revival

	171-17
	GLO.>>>
	
	28
	Norman Ave

	ca. 1900
	Craftsman

	169-37
	GLO.1150
	The White Villa
	12
	Ocean Ave

	ca. 1899
	Colonial Revival



Note:	Lycett Store at 35 Fuller Street (GLO.1136) has been demolished.



SKETCH MAP (North is at left.  Properties are identified by assessor’s numbers.)
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SUPPLEMENTARY IMAGES 
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Photo 2.  12 Norman Ave.
	[image: ]
Photo 3.  24 Norman Ave.
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Photo 4.  18 Norman Ave.
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Photo 5.  12 Ocean Ave.
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Photo 6.  19A Norman Ave.
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Photo 7.  1 Magnolia Ave.
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Photo 8.  3 Norman Ave., Union Congregational Church.
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Photo 9.  1 Lexington Ave., Magnolia Library Building.
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Photo 10.  2 Lexington Ave., Original Magnolia Tea House.
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Photo 11.  35 Fuller Street, Magnolia Telegraph Office.
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Photo 12.  10 Dalton Ave.  
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[Delete this page if no Criteria Statement is prepared]

                       National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form



Check all that apply:

[bookmark: Check2]|_|  Individually eligible            |_|   Eligible only in a historic district

[bookmark: Check4]|_|  Contributing to a potential historic district         |_|  Potential historic district



[bookmark: Check5][bookmark: Check6][bookmark: Check7][bookmark: Check8]Criteria:      |_|   A       |_|    B       |_|    C    |_|    D

[bookmark: Check9][bookmark: Check10][bookmark: Check11][bookmark: Check12][bookmark: Check13][bookmark: Check14][bookmark: Check15]Criteria Considerations:      |_|   A     |_|    B     |_|   C    |_|   D     |_|    E     |_|    F      |_|    G


                   Statement of Significance by Kathleen K. Broomer and Wendy Frontiero
                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
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